
U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURDlSTRICT OF N.H. 

DISTRICT OF NEW HAMPSHIRE FILED 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) 2011 FED - 8 P 2: 0 I 
) 

v. ) 

RICHARD WINEFIELD, ) Cr. No. // -ct- '^~b " 6 ' ^ -S VK^ 

Defendant. 

INFORMATION 

The United States Attorney charges: 

COUNT ONE 
MAIL FRAUD 

[18 U.S.C. § 1341, 2] 

1. At all times relevant to this Information, defendant RICHARD WINEFIELD was a 

licensed real estate salesperson with his primary residence located in Nashua, New Hampshire. 

2. From in or around the fall of 2006 to in or around October 2007, in the District of 

New Hampshire, the defendant, 

RICHARD WINEFIELD, 

did knowingly and intentionally devise, and intend to devise, and did aid and abet, a scheme and 

artifice to defraud and to obtain money and property by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, 

representations and promises [hereafter "the scheme"], and for the purpose of executing such 

scheme and attempting to do so, did cause matter to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service 

and private and commercial interstate carrier, and caused such matter to be delivered according 

to the direction thereon. 

3. It was part of the scheme that defendant RICHARD WINEFIELD and others 
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defrauded and obtained money from mortgage lenders by arranging sham real estate transactions 

and obtaining mortgage loans through straw borrowers as follows: 

A. Scheme participants identified homeowners facing foreclosure or having difficulty 

making mortgage payments, and sent solicitations to those homeowners by United States mail 

offering a program to assist them with those difficulties. During subsequent telephone 

conversations with the homeowners, scheme participants pitched a proposal that purportedly 

would allow the homeowners to prevent foreclosures, remain in their homes, re-establish their 

credit, and obtain new mortgage financing within two years. 

B. The proposal required the homeowners to deed title to their homes to certain Limited 

Liability Companies ("LLCs") controlled by the scheme participants. The homeowners would 

pay rent for two years while remaining in their homes, and later re-purchase the homes at a 

stipulated price. The scheme participants were to pay off the homeowners' existing mortgages 

and hold the properties until the homeowners re-purchased their homes at the established re

purchase prices. The re-purchase prices were generally 30-35% higher than the payoff amounts 

on the homeowners' mortgages. 

C. In reality, after taking title to the homes of the distressed homeowners, the scheme 

participants paid off the existing mortgages by obtaining new, usually significantly larger, 

mortgage loans on the properties, and they immediately converted the additional borrowed 

money to their own use. This stripped most or all of the available equity from the properties and 

left the properties encumbered with larger mortgages. Scheme participants used the rental 

money paid by the original homeowners to make payments on the new, higher mortgage loans. 

D. To obtain the new, larger mortgage loans, the scheme participants arranged sham 

transactions in which the LLCs sold the properties to various straw purchasers who acted on 
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behalf of, and as instructed by, the scheme participants (hereafter "straws"). The scheme 

participants solicited relatives, friends and even strangers to act as straws, offering monetary 

rewards (typically $5,000 per transaction) in exchange for the use of the straws' identities and 

credit for the sham transactions. Throughout the scheme, the participants used the term 

"investors" when referring to the straws. 

E. In setting up the sham transactions, the scheme participants listed straws as purchasers 

of the acquired properties. The scheme participants set high prices for the properties on the 

purchase and sale agreements and obtained appraisals consistent with those prices. The scheme 

participants falsely and fraudulently prepared mortgage applications identifying the straws as 

borrowers, and submitted the applications to lenders chosen by the scheme participants. Scheme 

participants assured the straws that they would have no further obligations and would never need 

to make any payments on the loans for which they were the named borrowers of record. 

F. In addition to misrepresenting the straws as bona fide purchasers and borrowers, the 

loan applications contained various false statements, including, at times, false statements of 

income and assets, and false statements that the properties would serve as the borrowers' primary 

or secondary residences. When the same straw was used in more than one sham transaction, the 

scheme participants submitted the loan applications to different lenders. 

G. At formal closings conducted by settlement agents, the properties were deeded to the 

straws and, after payments to secured parties and other creditors, the remaining loan proceeds 

were obtained by the scheme participants. The deeds and mortgages for transactions in the 

names of straws were recorded in county registries of deeds. Straws were often instructed by 

scheme participants to re-deed the properties to entities they controlled, but those deeds were not 

recorded, thus leaving the straws as the owners and mortgagors of record. 

4. The scheme was already in progress when defendant WINEFIELD knowingly and 

willfully participated in it beginning in the Fall of 2006. Defendant actively participated by 
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recruiting one straw purchaser, visiting distressed homeowners to solicit their properties for use 

in the scheme, determining sales prices to be used in the straw transactions, and attending 

closings. 

5. Between October 2006 and March 2007, defendant WINEFIELD also personally 

acted as a straw purchaser and borrower of record in several transactions. 

6. In connection with his straw purchases, defendant WINEFIELD caused documents 

and checks to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service and private and commercial interstate 

carriers, including but not limited to a check in the amount of $152,859.41 that was sent via the 

Postal Service from Manchester, New Hampshire, to Piano, Texas on March 23, 2007. This 

check was used to pay off an existing mortgage on a property located at 96 Lake Street, Nashua, 

New Hampshire, allowing for the discharge of that mortgage necessary to clear title to the 

property. The check was issued by the settlement agent at a closing where defendant, as 

borrower of record and as part of the scheme, obtained a new, larger mortgage loan on the 

property, from Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB in the amount of $228,000. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 2. 

Dated: February 8, 2011 

JOHN P. KACAVAS 
United States Attorney 
District of New Hampshire 
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